
DESERT WATER AGENCY     BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
SEPTEMBER 1, 2015                                                             REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
                                                          

REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 GENE AUTRY TRAIL SOUTH – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 
About Desert Water Agency: 
Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – August 18, 2015 EWING                               

                                 
3. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  LUKER 

 
4. COMMITTEE REPORTS – A. Conservation & Public Affairs – August 19, 2015       OBERHAUS 

                             B.  Executive – August 25, 2015       EWING  
 
5. PUBLIC INPUT 

Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of 
the public may speak on any item listed on the agenda as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their 
comments to no more than three (3) minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the 
agenda. 
 

6. ITEMS FOR ACTION  
A. Recommend Contract Award for Construction of Chino Canyon 1040 Reservoir KRAUSE 

 
B. Request Authorization to Call Bids for 2015/2016 Replacement Pipeline Project KRAUSE 

 
C. Request Authorization for General Manager to Execute Construction Agreement LUKER 

with the City of Cathedral City for facility relocations for the Cathedral Canyon  
Wash Bridge installation and the Date Palm Bridge Widening Project 
 

D. Request Adoption of Resolution No. 1122 in Opposition to Public Goods EWING 
Charge on Water 
 

7. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
A. Investment Policy Review KRIEGER 
B. Director’s Report on ACWA Meeting/Workshop EWING 

   
8. PUBLIC INFORMATION  
 A. Media Information 
 B. PI Activities 

 
9. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 

 
10. CLOSED SESSION 
 A.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 
 B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
   
11. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 
12. ADJOURN 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person with a disability who requires a 
modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working hours prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make 
reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may be obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



8567 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 08/18/15 

 

                                                                  2 
   MINUTES   

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
August 18, 2015 

 
DWA Board: Craig A. Ewing, President ) 
 James Cioffi, Vice President   )         
 Joseph K. Stuart, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
 Richard Oberhaus, Director ) 
 
DWA Staff: David K. Luker, General Manager ) 
 Mark S. Krause, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Kim McCance, Sr. Admin. Asst. ) 
 Katie Ruark, Public Information Officer ) 
 Ashley Hudgens, Public Information Officer ) 
 Steve Johnson, Operations Engineer ) 
 Lee Lahtinen, Controller ) 
  
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
 
Public: Erica Harnik, Building Industry Association ) 
       

Attendance 

17223.  President Ewing opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join him in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
17224.  President Ewing called for approval of the July 21, 2015 
Regular Board meeting minutes.  
 
  Director Oygar moved for approval. After a second by Vice 
President Cioffi, the minutes were approved as written.  
  
17225.  President Ewing called upon General Manager Luker to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Luker introduced newly hired employee Ashley Hudgens, 
Public Information Officer. 
 
  Mr. Luker reported that on July 25 at approximately 10:00 
a.m. staff responded to a hit fire hydrant at 39310 Juan Circle. This was a 
hit and run. The water loss was through a two-inch hole for approximately 
thirty minutes.  Staff turned the valve off and made the necessary repairs. A 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Approval of 07/21/15 
Regular Board Mtg. 
Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
 
Employee Introduction 
 
 
 
Damaged Hydrant 
 
 
 
 



8568 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 08/18/15 

 
police report was made.   
 
  Mr. Luker reported that on July 26 at approximately 9:00 a.m. 
staff received a no water call at 67555 East Palm Canyon Dr. The customer 
said that the backflow was gone and appeared to be stolen. The backflow 
has since been replaced by the customer. A police report was made.  
 
  Mr. Luker continued reporting that on July 30 at 
approximately 4:39 a.m. stand-by responded to a hit backflow at 2300 S. 
Palm Cyn. Dr. Repairs have been made and the backflow is back in service. 
A police report was made and the water loss was metered.     
  
  Concluding his report, Mr. Luker indicated that since July 1, 
2015 (42 days) to August 11, there have been 76 water main leaks and 42 1 
& 2 inch water service leaks.  Staff is working on a presentation for a future 
Board meeting to demonstrate increasing leak frequency and pipeline 
replacement necessities in years to come. 
 
  In response to Director Oygar, Mr. Luker stated unaccounted 
water loss due to pipeline water leaks is approximately 1% – 5% annually. 
 
  Responding to Secretary-Treasurer Stuart, Mr. Luker stated 
DWA reports water loss to the State of California Health Department. 
 
  In response to Director Oberhaus, Mr. Luker indicated staff is 
working on a report regarding the infrastructure of Agency pipelines. 
   
17226.  President Ewing noted the minutes for the August 7, 2015 
Executive Committee were provided in the Board’s packet. 
 
17227.  President Ewing opened the meeting for public input. 
 
  Erica Harnik with the Building Industry Association (BIA) 
introduced herself and indicated that the BIA opened a new office in 
Rancho Mirage.  
 
  There being no one else from the public wishing to address 
the Board, President Ewing closed the public comment period. 
 
17228.  President Ewing stated he is requesting approval and support 
of ACWA Region 9 Nominating Committee’s Recommended Slate for 
2015-2016 Term. 
 
  President Ewing stated the recommendations are: Chair is G. 
Patrick O’Dowd (Coachella Valley Water District); Vice Chair is Harvey 
R. Ryan (Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District); and Board Members 
are: Steven Farrell (Crestline Village Water District), Joseph J. Kuebler 

General Manager’s 
Report (Cont.) 
 
Stolen Backflow 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Damaged Backflow 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Water Main Leaks 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Committee Reports –  
Executive 08/07/15 
 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
Erica Harnik, BIA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Action Items: 
ACWA Region 9 
Nominations 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8569 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 08/18/15 

 
(Eastern Municipal Water District), Mary Ann Melleby (San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency), James Morales Jr. (East Valley Water District), and James 
Ventura, Jr. (Mojave Water Agency). 
 
  President Ewing moved for approval of ACWA Region 9 
Nominating Committee’s Recommended Slate for 2015-2016 term with a 
second by Director Oygar, the motion passed unanimously. 
    
17229.  President Ewing presented a request to Adopt Resolution No. 
1121 Supporting the Nomination of Director Tiegs as the Association of 
California Water Agencies (ACWA) President.  President Ewing stated that 
he personally knows Ms. Tiegs and she is currently Vice President of 
ACWA. 
 
  President Ewing made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 1121 
Supporting the Nomination of Kathleen Tiegs to the Office of President of 
ACWA, with a second by Director Oygar, the motion passed unanimously. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1121 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
 SUPPORTING THE NOMINATION OF KATHLEEN TIEGS  

AS THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA 
WATER AGENCIES (ACWA) PRESIDENT 

 
17230.  President Ewing called upon Public Information Officer 
Ruark to present staff’s request to authorize the General Manager to sign a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) amongst the Coachella Valley 
Regional Water Management Group (CVRWMG) for Implementation of 
the Proposition 84 Coachella Valley Regional Turf Reduction Program 
 
  Ms. Ruark stated the Coachella Valley Regional Water 
Management Group (CVRWMG) applied for and was awarded a 
Proposition 84 conservation grant. A large portion of the grant is for turf 
buy back.  DWA’s portion of the grant is $1.29 million in grants which 
needs to be supported by funding match upfront of $502,948.  The customer 
cost could be the funding match. 
 
  Continuing her report, Ms. Ruark stated that Indio Water 
Authority (IWA) will be the grant administrator and has executed a contract 
with the State of California Department of Water Resources.  Three of the 
CVRWMG Agencies have signed the MOU to administer the grant. IWA 
will be presenting the MOU to their City Council for approval on August 
19, 2015.  DWA will wait to execute the MOU until IWA approves it. 
 
  In conclusion, Ms. Ruark stated that staff requests a 
conditional approval to authorize the General Manager to sign a 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
ACWA Region 9 
Nominations 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Resolution 1121 
Nominating Kathleen 
Tiegs to President 
ACWA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 1121 
Adopted 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Authorization 
for General Manager to 
sign MOU 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8570 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 08/18/15 

 
Memorandum of Understanding amongst the Coachella Valley Regional 
Water Management Group for implementation of the Proposition 84 
Coachella Valley Regional Turf Reduction Program.  The General Manager 
will not sign the MOU unless all five of the Agencies’ governing bodies 
have approved it. 
 
  Director Oygar made a motion to approve staff’s request. 
After a second by Director Oberhaus, the motion carried unanimously. 
 
  In response to Vice President Cioffi, Ms. Ruark stated that on 
Page 3, Section 1.9 of the MOU there are steps in place if an Agency cannot 
use all their allocated grant money in a timely manner. 
 
17231.  President Ewing presented staff’s request for Board Action 
with regard to Director attendance at ACWA Region 9 event. 
 
  President Ewing stated an ACWA Region 9 event is 
scheduled for September 18, 2015 at the Inland Empire Utilities Agency.  
President Ewing stated this is not a regular ACWA event therefore, needs 
authorization for Director per diem.  President Ewing stated it is a 
worthwhile presentation and encouraged interested Board members to 
attend.  
 
  President Ewing made a motion to approve staff’s request to 
authorize payment of Director per diem compensation for attendance at the 
September 18, 2015 ACWA Region 9 event. After a second by Director 
Oberhaus, the motion carried unanimously. 
   
17232.  President Ewing called upon General Manager Luker to report 
on the July Water Production Comparison. 
 
  Mr. Luker reported that the Agency and its customers 
achieved a 30 percent reduction during July 2015 compared to July 2013; 
the baseline used by the State Water Resources Control Board to measure 
statewide conservation achievements. 
 
  In response to Director Oberhaus, Mr. Luker stated, a) there 
are few pumpers in DWA’s service area, their meters are read monthly and 
their water use is tracked annually and, b) the pumpers receive the same 
conservation brochures and information as DWA customers.  
 
   Regarding violators and notifications, Ms. Ruark noted there 
are very few repeat violators.   
 
17233.  President Ewing asked Agency Counsel Riddell to provide a 
report on the July 16, 2015 meeting of the Board of Directors of the State 
Water Contractors (SWC). 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Request Authorization 
for General Manager to 
sign MOU 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Action re: 
Director Attendance at 
ACWA Region 9 event 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Discussion Items: 
July 2015 Water 
Production Comparison 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
07/16/15 State Water 
Contractors Meeting 
 
 
 



8571 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 08/18/15 

 
  Mr. Riddell reported on the following items: 1) Water 
Operations Report, 2) Energy Update, 3) General Manager’s Report, 4) 
Energy Objectives Update, and 5) 2016 Statement of Charges. 
 
17234.  President Ewing asked Vice President Cioffi and Director 
Oberhaus to report on their attendance at the NWRA Conference. 
 
  Director Oberhaus noted his recent attendance at the NWRA 
conference in Monterey where the major topic was the drought. 
 
  Secretary-Treasurer Stuart reported that a drought panel 
discussed the over allocation of water available and that he attended a tour 
of the Pure Water Monterey Project. 
 
17235.  President Ewing noted that Board packets included media and 
public information reports for July 2015.  He commented on the Desert 
Sun, July 2 article regarding the costs to comply with the chromium-6 
standards. 
 
17236.  Director Oberhaus inquired if DWA has a Spanish translator 
for customers at the front counter.  In response, Mr. Luker stated that there 
are several Spanish translators at the front counter. 
 
  President Ewing requested to add to the next Agenda his 
report from the ACWA meeting he attended in July. 
 
17237.  At 8:53 a.m., President Ewing convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of (A) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. 
Coachella Valley Water District, et al, and (B) Existing Litigation, pursuant 
to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) Agua Caliente Band of 
Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al. 
   
17238.  At 10:06 a.m., President Ewing reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action. 
   
17239.  In the absence of any further business, President Ewing 
adjourned the meeting at 10:07 a.m.  
 

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         Craig A. Ewing, President                                 

 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Joseph K. Stuart, Secretary-Treasurer 

Discussion Items 
(Cont.) 
07/16/15 State Water 
Contractors Meeting  
 
 
Directors’ Report – 
NWRA Conference 
Attendance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Information 
July 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
Directors’ 
Comments/Requests 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et al 
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County, et al 
 
 
 
 
 
Reconvene 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



3 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

SEPTEMBER 1, 2015 
  
 

 
 

Spencer’s Restaurant water service on Baristo Road was replaced last week. We consider this 
service replacement to be the most difficult we ever faced. DWA crews/staff worked closely with 
all involved customers. Minimal disruption of water occurred, but only in the early a.m. hours. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 4 
 

The 24” Snow Creek Pipeline to be used for an alternative water supply for the Snow Creek 
Village required a mainline valve replacement. Existing valves would not close due to age. The 
new valve was installed and the pipeline flow will be reversed to provide water delivery back up 
the hill to the Village.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 

 
24” Snow Creek Pipeline 
(Cont.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
4-A 

 
 

Minutes 
Conservation & Public Affairs Committee Meeting 

August 19, 2015  
                                                                                     
 
Directors Present:  Richard Oberhaus 
Staff Present:   Dave Luker, Katie Ruark, Ashley Hudgens 
 
1. Discussion Items 
 

A. Turf Buyback Program 
Staff informed the Committee that the program is ready to start accepting applications on 
September 1, 2015. 
 

B. Water Summit 
The SoCal Energy + Water Summit scheduled for September 30 – October 1 at the Palm Springs 
Convention Center was discussed. Further discussion with the full Board is recommended. 

 
C. Conservation Budget 
 This item was tabled to a future Committee meeting. 
 

2. Other 
  
 A. Customer Response 
  A response to Mr. Switzer from staff was given. 
  
3. Adjourn 



4-B  
Minutes 

Executive Committee Meeting 
August 25, 2015 

 
 

Directors Present: Craig Ewing, Jim Cioffi      
Staff Present: Dave Luker, Mark Krause 
    
 
1. Discussion Items 

 

A. Review Agenda for September 1, 2015 Regular Board Meeting 
The proposed agenda for the September 1, 2015 Regular Board meeting 
was reviewed. 
    

 2. Other – None. 
 
   
            
 3. Adjourn 

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

Memos/Steve/2015 
 

6-A 
 
 
      

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
SEPTEMBER 1, 2015  

 
 

RE: RECOMMEND CONTRACT AWARD FOR CONSTRUCTING 
OF CHINO CANYON 1040 ZONE RESERVOIR  

 
 
On August 25, 2015, the Agency received three bids for subject work. The bid amounts 
and the Engineer’s estimate are as follows: 
 
CONTRACTOR       BID AMOUNT 
Canyon Springs Enterprises     $928,100 
Pacific Tank and Construction, Inc.    $1,221,300 
Crosno Construction, Inc.      $1,275,440 
Engineer’s Estimate       $947,000 
 
Canyon Springs Enterprises submitted the lowest responsive bid for the project, 
approximately 32% lower than the second low bid from Pacific Tank and Construction. 
Canyon Springs Enterprises is considered a capable contractor with a current Class A 
contractor’s license No. 806747. 
 
The 2005/2006 Capital Improvement Budget includes Work Order 05-582-R-33 and 05-
570 for the installation of the 0.5MG reservoir and for the transmission pipeline that will 
supply water to the reservoir. The budgets for said work orders are $1,604,600 and 
$1,030,400 respectively, to include engineering, construction, inspection, and overhead 
costs. 
 
In March 2015, the Agency awarded Jones Brothers Construction the contract to install 
the 3,514 lineal feet of 16” transmission pipeline in the amount of $514,000. Due to 
delays, there have been change orders in the amount of $6,063.53 added to the 
contract total. Jones Brothers began construction the week of August 3, 2015 and have 
installed approximately 2,270 feet to date. Staff estimates inspection for the pipeline will 
be approximately $50,000 to $60,000. Prior to Jones Brothers beginning their pipeline 
work, the developer installed sections of the 16” main as part of their storm drain work 
within the streets in the amount of $59,057.50. This cost was paid by the Agency. The 
estimated total cost for the 16” transmission pipeline, to include engineering,  
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Memos/Steve/2015 
 

 
 
construction, inspection, and overheads will be approximately $685,000. This is 
$345,400 under budget. 
 
Currently, the Agency’s costs for the reservoir, to include purchase of the property, 
reservoir site rough grading improvements, grading inspection, reservoir design, and 
overheads is $721,726. The estimated inspection costs for the reservoir construction is 
$114,000. With a contract amount of $928,100 and inspection costs of $114,000, the 
total costs for the reservoir, to include engineering, construction, inspection, and 
overheads will be approximately $1,763,826. This is $159,226 over budget. 
 
The total budget for the reservoir and the 16” transmission pipeline is $2,635,000. The 
estimated total cost for the projects, to include engineering, construction, inspection, 
and overheads is $2,448,826. This is $186,174 under budget.  
 
Staff recommends award of the Contract for subject work to Canyon Springs 
Enterprises in the amount of $928,100. Based on the bidding documents, the project is 
scheduled to begin in October 2015 with completion by June 2016.     
 
  
 



6-B 
 
 
      

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
SEPTEMBER 1, 2015  

 
 

RE: REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO CALL FOR BIDS FOR  
 CONSTRUCTING 2015/2016 REPLACEMENT PIPELINES –  
 INDIAN CANYON DRIVE, STEVENS ROAD, WAWONA ROAD   
 
 
The 2015/2016 Capital Improvement Budget includes Work Order 15-111 for the installation of 
replacement pipelines (Indian Canyon Drive: approximately 2,700 feet of 12” ductile iron pipe 
between Tahquitz Canyon Way and Alejo Road; Stevens Road: approximately 600 feet of 8” 
ductile iron pipe between Palm Canyon Drive and Kaweah Road; Wawona Road: approximately 
600 feet of 8” ductile iron pipe between Steven Road and Vista Chino). The budget amount for 
the work order is $1,200,000 to include engineering, construction, inspection, and overhead 
costs. The Engineer’s construction cost estimate for the project is $950,000, with estimated 
inspection costs of $100,000.  
 
In March 2015, the City of Palm Springs notified the Agency of a $12 million street rehabilitation 
project that the City will be performing in the summer and fall months of 2015. As part of their 
notification, the City provided a list of streets that are part of the rehabilitation work area. Staff 
reviewed the list and determined that three streets (Indian Canyon, Stevens, and Wawona) had 
several leaks over the past five years (130 total) and should be replaced prior to the 
rehabilitation work. Agency engineering staff began design of the pipeline replacement projects 
in April 2015. Typically, replacement pipeline design occurs in the fall and winter months with 
construction during the summer months. This project; however, has been expedited to 
accommodate the City’s street rehabilitation and slurry project. To expedite the construction 
process, staff recommends purchasing the ductile iron pipe to be installed by the contractor at a 
cost of approximately $80,000 for 12” pipe and $20,000 for 8” pipe. Staff also would like to 
expedite the bidding process by advertising for 19 days (The Agency typically advertises for 30 
days. The minimum allowed by law is 15 days.), and award the project at a special Board 
Meeting.         
 
With authorization being granted today, the bid opening for the project will be held on 
September 22, 2015, and award to be at a special Board Meeting scheduled the week of 
September 22, 2015. Completion of work is scheduled for December 2015. Staff requests 
authorization to advertise for bids for constructing the 2015/2016 Replacement Pipelines.  





Memos/Steve/2015 

6-C 
 
 
      

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
SEPTEMBER 1, 2015  

 
 

RE: REQUEST AUTHORIZATION FOR GENERAL MANAGER TO  
 EXECUTE CONSTRUCTION UTILITY AGREEMENT NO. 501  
 WITH CITY OF CATHEDRAL CITY FOR THE CATHEDRAL  
 CANYON DRIVE BRIDGE PROJECT AND DATE PALM DRIVE  
 BRIDGE WIDENING PROJECT 
 
 
Cathedral City staff, along with Desert Water Agency and legal counsel, have prepared 
the attached Agreements for the relocation of water and wastewater facilities associated 
with the above referenced projects.  
 
The Agreements provide for Cathedral City to relocate the Agency’s existing 6” sewer 
force main within the Cathedral Canyon Wash, while Agency crews will relocate an 
existing sewer air vac. on the Date Palm Lift Station sewer force main and a fire hydrant 
at the corner of Perez Road and Date Palm Drive. The City will also be adjusting water 
valve lids as part of the Date Palm Project. The Agency prepared relocation drawings 
for the 6” force main and will include those plans as part of the City’s bridge plans. The 
City will administer the contract for both projects. All relocation work and valve lid 
adjustments shall be paid by the City of Cathedral City, based on cost estimates 
provided to the City by Agency staff, to include contractor and Agency material, labor, 
and inspection costs. In the event that the final cost for the relocation work exceeds 
125% of the estimated costs as shown in these Agreements, an amended Agreement 
shall be executed by the City and Agency prior to the final payment to the Agency. 
 
The estimated costs, as determined by Agency staff, are as follows: 
 

• Sewer Air Vac. and Fire Hydrant relocation by Agency: $25,000 
• Water valve lid adjustments by City Contractor:  $2,500 
• 6” Force Main relocation by Cathedral City Contractor: $275,000 
• Agency inspection and misc. labor for 6” Force Main:  $75,000 

  
Staff recommends approval of the Agreements and requests authorization for the 
General Manager to execute the documents.  
  





































Memos/Board/2015 

6-D 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
SEPTEMBER 1, 2015 

 
 
RE: REQUEST ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 1122 IN OPPOSITION TO 

SENATE BILL NO. 20 (PUBLIC GOODS CHARGE ON WATER) 
 
 
Senate Bill No. 20 (SB 20) has been submitted to the Agency by Lobbyist Bob 
Reeb for consideration of a position to be taken by Desert Water Agency. 
 
SB 20 would create the California Water Resiliency Investment Fund in the State 
Treasury which is intended to raise revenues for the fund through imposition of a 
public goods charge on water consumers throughout the state. 
 
If SB 20 becomes law, it would place an additional financial burden on DWA 
customers, the proceeds of which would be sent to the State Treasury for the 
Legislature to spend outside of our service territory for drought response, 
regional water programs, safe drinking water for disadvantaged communities, 
ecosystem restoration and data and information systems. 
 
Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution No. 1122 opposing SB 20 
and send letters requesting support of its opposition to local representatives 
(attached). 
 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 1122 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 
IN OPPOSITION TO A PUBLIC GOODS CHARGE ON WATER 

 
WHEREAS, proposals to impose a public goods charge or similar permanent statewide tax on water could 

emerge in the near future; and 
 

WHEREAS, a public goods charge or other permanent tax on water bills is not the appropriate mechanism 
to fund water solutions or address water quality and water supply problems faced by some disadvantaged 
communities; and 
 

WHEREAS, assessing a public goods charge would unfairly penalize local water agencies that have already 
made, and continue to make, investments in water management programs and infrastructure and would make it more 
difficult and costly for local water agencies to fund critical local water efficiency and supply projects; and  
 

WHEREAS, according to a recent report by the Public Policy Institute of California, local water agencies 
are spending more than $25 billion a year on local water-related programs, projects and infrastructure, and those 
investments have prepared them to respond to the current drought and have shielded the state’s economy from the 
drought’s most severe impacts over the past four years; and  
 

WHEREAS, while there is a clear need to fund sensible long-term solutions and assist disadvantaged 
communities that do not have safe drinking water, a tax on water bills paid by a subset of Californians is not the 
solution; 
 

WHEREAS, local water managers are best suited to identify ways to spend locally-generated revenues at 
their respective agencies; an additional tax on water bills paid in order to send money to Sacramento, where a portion 
will be carved out to fund another layer of administration, is not efficient and is not an appropriate solution or sound 
policy; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Desert Water Agency opposes any effort by the state 
Legislature to impose a statewide public goods charge or other tax on water bills; and    
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Desert Water Agency opposes the use of the budget trailer bill process 
or other last-minute attempt to circumvent the appropriate legislative policy committee process to advance policy 
issues without full disclosure and transparency; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution shall be sent to our state legislative 
representatives and key members of the Administration. 

 
ADOPTED this 1st day of September, 2015. 

        ___________________________________ 
Craig A. Ewing, President 
Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Joseph K. Stuart, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
September 1, 2015 
 
 
The Honorable Eduardo Garcia 
Member, California Assembly 
State Capitol, Room 4162 
Sacramento, California 95814 
 
RE: Senate Bill No. 20—Oppose 
 
Dear Assembly Member Garcia: 
 
I am writing on behalf of Desert Water Agency to express opposition to SB 20 (Pavley), 
relating to the California Water Resiliency Investment Act. 
 
SB 20 would create the California Water Resiliency Investment Fund in the State 
Treasury and while the legislation currently lacks significant detail, it is clear that the 
author intends to raise revenue for the fund through imposition of a public goods charge 
on water consumers throughout the state. This would constitute a significant new tax on 
your constituents and Desert Water’s customers, the proceeds of which would be sent 
to the State Treasury for the Legislature to spend outside of our service territory for 
drought response, regional water programs, safe drinking water for disadvantaged 
communities, ecosystem restoration and data and information systems. 
 
Desert Water opposes the imposition of a public goods charge on its customers to 
supplant State General Fund investment in water infrastructure and ecosystem 
investment. 
 
USA TODAY, in a 2012 study of residential water rates over the past 12 years for large 
and small water agencies nationwide, found that monthly costs doubled for more in 29 
localities. The analysis of costs for a diverse mix of water suppliers representing every 
state and Washington, D.C. found that a resource long taken for granted will continue to 
become more costly for millions of Americans. Indeed, rates haven't crested yet 
because of significant costs to upgrade or repair water and wastewater systems 
throughout the nation. 
 
According to the 2012 study, the trend toward higher bills is being driven by: 
 
 The cost of paying off bonded indebtedness water systems issue to fund 

expensive repairs or upgrades on new or aging water systems. 
 



Assembly Member Garcia 
Page 2 

September 1, 2015 
 
 Increases in the cost of electricity, chemicals and fuel used to supply and treat 

water. 
 Compliance with federal government clean-water mandates. 
 Rising pension and health care costs for water agency workers. 

 
In California, there has been an alarming trend toward shifting the responsibility to fund 
state government functions from the General Fund to local agencies and private 
entities. As of FY 2013-14, State Water Resources Control Board core water quality 
regulatory program and activity fee revenue totaled $117.2 million annually. State Board 
fees imposed on water right holders like Desert Water Agency, which began in FY 
2004-05, have grown from $7.5 million in FY 2009-10 to $14.9 million in FY 2013-14 
and are projected to reach over $18 million by FY 2016-17. One of the principal drivers 
for these increases (budget cost drivers, according to the State Board) is state 
employee benefits and retirement costs! The money to pay for these cost shifts from the 
General Fund to local agencies comes directly from the pockets of our water 
customers—your constituents. These fees are in addition to other legislative mandates 
that routinely flow to Desert Water customers through the enactment of legislation—SB 
7 and SB 555 by Senator Lois Wolk are just two current examples. 
 
The State Board held a workshop in July regarding conservation water pricing, 
acknowledging that (1) water district rate-setting is a complex undertaking that involves 
numerous local determinations, (2) conservation water pricing must be carefully tailored 
to local circumstances to be effective, and (3) water suppliers must carefully construct 
and document their rate structures to comply with the constitutional limitations of 
Proposition 218. Desert Water concurs with these acknowledgements by the state 
board. Regrettably, workshop testimony veered off into a discussion of the efficacy of a 
public goods charge in terms of the challenge facing the State of California in 
addressing the water supply and drinking water needs of disadvantaged communities. 
 
According to a recent report by the Public Policy Institute of California, local water and 
wastewater agencies are spending more than $25 billion a year on local water-related 
programs and projects. State and federal spending on water is just a fraction of that in 
California each year. While there is a clear need to fund sensible, long-term solutions 
and assist disadvantaged communities that do not have safe drinking water, a statewide 
tax on water bills paid by Desert Water customers is not appropriate. DWA has made, 
and continues to make, significant investments in water management programs and 
infrastructure. Our agency’s 2015-2019 Capital Improvement Plan calls for the 
investment of $60 million. Fiscal responsibility is one of our guiding principles and the 
Agency’s Board of Directors and staff strive to balance the need to continually invest in 
Agency infrastructure with the challenge to maintain affordable rates for its customers. 
 
With the passage of AB 685 in 2012, California became one of the first states in the 
United States to recognize the human right to water, delineating the responsibilities of 
public officials at the state level. AB 685 specifically charges relevant California 
agencies with fulfillment of the law’s mandate by considering the human right to water in  



Assembly Member Garcia 
Page 2 

September 1, 2015 
 
policy, programming, and budgetary activities. A tax on local water bills is not the 
appropriate mechanism to address the water quality and water supply problems faced 
by disadvantaged communities. More appropriate funding sources – such as the state’s 
general fund – should be pursued to address a problem that is in the general public’s 
interest to solve. 
 
Assembly Member, the Desert Water Agency Board of Directors would greatly 
appreciate your support in fighting against any attempt at this late point in the legislative 
session to enact a public goods charge as well as your opposition to SB 20. 
 
Thank you for your time and consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Craig A. Ewing 
Board President 
 
cae/sb 
 
cc:  Assembly Member Mayes 
 Senator Stone 
 
 
 



BOARD/STAFF RPTS/KRIEGER 

7-A 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
SEPTEMBER 1, 2015 

 
 

RE: ANNUAL REVIEW OF RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING POLICY 
 AND GUIDELINES FOR AGENCY INVESTMENTS 
 
Attached for the Board’s review are copies of Resolutions No. 886 (adopted 
November 16, 2004) and No. 1007 (adopted July 7, 2009) which established the 
policies and guidelines for Desert Water Agency investments.  Government Code 
recommends that the Agency’s investment policy be brought before the Board at 
least annually for review and/or discussion. 
 
After review of the Government Code and legal consultation, it was determined 
that the Board need not re-adopt the investment policy annually if there are no 
proposed changes.  Thus, as there have been no changes or modifications in 
Fiscal Year 2015/2016 to the Government Code §53600-53635 which affects the 
Agency’s investments, Staff has no recommendations for revisions to the 
Agency’s existing policy, and a new resolution is not necessary at this time.  
Therefore, this policy is brought to the Board for the purpose of review only. 
















































































































	Agenda 09 01 15 Board Agenda
	Item 2 08 18 15 Board Minutes
	2
	MINUTES
	OF THE REGULAR MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 3 09 01 15 GM Report
	SEPTEMBER 1, 2015

	Item 4A 08 19 15 Conserv & Pub Affairs Cmttee Minutes
	Item 4B 08 25 15 Exec Cmttee Minutes
	Item 6A 09 01 15 Zone 1040 Chino Canyon Reservoir Award Staff Report
	Item 6B 09 01 15 2015_2016 Replacement Pipeline Staff Report
	Item 6C 09 01 15 Cathedral Canyon Bridge and Date Palm Bridge Construction Agreement Staff Report
	Item 6D 09 01 15 Oppose SB 20 Public Goods Charge staff report
	Item 7A 09 01 15 Review Reso Guidelines for Investments
	Item 8A 09 01 15 PI Media
	Item 8B 09 01 15 PI Activities

